COLORADO

SCOUTS

IN ACTION

Boulder County Fairgrounds

Nelson and Hover Roads, Longmont, Colorado

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Scout Show Committee	3
Schedule	4
Opening Ceremony Booth Facilities Camping Facilities	5 5 5
Scout Show Office Parking Concessions & Pancake Breakfast	6 6 6
Slide Show Campfire After the Campfire Adult Supervision	7 7 7 7
Tickets	8
Camp Guidelines	9
Awards	10
Evaluation Sheet For "Scouting Spirit" & "Best Of Show"	11
Evaluation Sheet For "Pioneering" Contest	12
Five Star Award Requirements	13
Pinewood Derby Rules	14
Catapult Rules	20
Scouter's Choice Youth Ballot	21
Scouter's Choice Adult Ballot	23
Camping Registration Form	25
Booth / Activity Registration Form	27
Pinewood Derby Registration Form	29
WEBELOS Recognition Form	31
Slide Show Reservation Form	33

SCOUT SHOW COMMITTEE

Dan Tulenko Scout Show Chairman (H) (303) 772-7866 dtulenko@earthlink.net Robert Stone Special Events & Facilities Coordinator

Terry Baker
Cub & Boy Scout Coordinator
Booth / Site Assignment
Webelos Catapult

Open Pinewood Derby

Mike Mitchell Publicity APO Food Coordinator

Open Camping Coordinator Campfire Melanie Christofferson Awards

Judy Tumblin Scout Show Office Open
Unit to do clean up
service project

Ken DeVilbiss Dutch Oven Cookoff King

SCHEDULE

Thursday	April	18,	2002
----------	-------	-----	------

5:00 - 10:00 PM Set up booths

6:00 - 8:30 PM Pinewood Derby registration / check-in

Friday April 19, 2002

4:00 - 7:00 PM Set up booths and campsites

5:30 - 6:30 PM Pinewood Derby late registration

7:00 - 8:30 PM Pinewood Derby Open Class Division

8:30 - 9:30 PM Campfire

10:00 PM Lights out / taps

Saturday April 20, 2002

7:00 -	10:00	AM	ΟA	breakf	ast -	-	Public	invited	to

"ALL-YOU-CAN-EAT"

7:00 AM Start pioneering projects

7:00 AM Start Pinewood Derby heats

7:30 AM Camp site check-out

11:00 AM Opening Flag ceremony

11:30 AM Webelos catapult contest

3:45 PM Awards presentation

4:00 PM Closing

Clean up

OPENING CEREMONY

Opening ceremony will be conducted in the plaza south of the Exhibit Hall at 11:00 AM April 20, 2002. Please bring your unit flag for display during the opening ceremony.

BOOTH FACILITIES

Booths will be set up in the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall. Outdoor exhibits will be set up north of the main building in the same area as the pioneering projects. Please indicate your requirements on the Registration Forms (found at he back of this packet). Safety checks will be made at the booths and outdoors exhibits.

Units are asked to bring their own tables and chairs if they are required. Some booth frames will be available. The frames are approximately 6 feet high by 8 feet long. A single booth will be 8 feet by 8 feet and a double booth will be 8 feet by 16 feet. You will need to provide paper, cloth, etc if you want to cover the booth frames.

Electricity is available but you may need to provide an extension cord to get the power to your booth.

Please operate your booth / activity after the Opening Ceremony and close prior to the Awards presentation at 3:45 PM. All awards and trophies will be presented at that time.

A word on fundraisers. Booths and the Scout show in general are NOT intended to be used as unit fundraisers. The spirit of the Scout show is to show our community what the Scouts are all about, not to try and sell them "stuff". Ticket prices are intentionally kept to a minimum, and are actually intended to help defer the cost of a display to each individual unit. Please plan your booth accordingly.

CAMPING FACILITIES

The picnic area directly south of the Exhibit Hall will be used for camping. Only tent camping is permitted, i.e. no RV camping. Camping reservations must be made using the Camping Reservation Form at the back of this packet.

Please use available trash containers.

SCOUT SHOW OFFICE

Scout Show Staff will be in the southwest corner of the Exhibit Hall for:

- -Turn in ticket money
- -Turn in ballots
- -Pick up "Participation and Camping" ribbons
- -Scout Show Committee members will be available
- -Field Executive and District Executive will be available
- -Lost and Found

PARKING

Vehicles will not be allowed to remain in the parking lot west of the Exhibit Hall. Please unload and move them to the north parking lot. The parking area is directly north of the pioneering area.

Please remember: No vehicles may be left in the pioneering area or near the camping area.

CONCESSIONS

Concessions will again be offered through the Alpha Phi Omega fraternity of CU. Hamburgers, hot dogs, candy and pop will be available for purchase.

Order of the Arrow presents
"ALL YOU CAN EAT"

PANCAKE BREAKFAST

SATURDAY, APRIL 20, 2002 7:00 - 10:00 AM

All Scouters and their families are invited to attend. The breakfast will be held under the picnic shelter in the southwest corner of the fair grounds.

There will not be advanced ticket sales. You will pay at the Pancake Breakfast Saturday morning.

Adults / Scouts

\$3.00

SLIDE SHOW

Wouldn't you like to share pictures of that exciting camping trip, hike or fun event your unit had? There will be an area set aside with a projector and screen for units to do a slide presentation.

What a great opportunity for your scouts to work on their:
 Cinematography merit badge
 Communication merit badge
 Photography merit badge
 Webelos Communicator activity badge
 Webelos Showman activity badge

Please fill out a reservation form at the back of this packet to reserve time.

CAMPFIRE

The fire pit will be located at the East Side of the north parking lot. Since the campfire will be for a limited period of time, the Scout Show Committee requests that all units coordinate their participation with the Scout Show Committee. We will need skits, songs and run-ons (all being appropriate for Scouts! - and being in the public eye...).

Should you or your unit wish to participate, your help would be greatly appreciated! Please contact the Camping Chairperson.

Arrow of Light Recognition

All Cub scouts that have received the rank of Arrow of Light after April 2001 or in 2002 will be recognized. For scouts in your unit whom you would like to recognized please fill out the Webelos Recognition form at the back of this packet and turn it in to the Boulder office by Thursday April 12, 2002. This will enable us to recognize the scouts by name and plan how much time we will need on the agenda.

AFTER THE CAMPFIRE

There will be hot chocolate served and slide show presentations in the Event Hall for all who wish to attend.

ADULT SUPERVISION

Adult leaders are responsible for the boys in their units.

TICKETS TICKETS TICKETS \$1.00 each

- 1. Tickets will be available at the Scout Show kick off meetings. Attend either February 26 or 27, or the make-up meeting March 14, 2002 at Rocky Mountain Christian Church (Niwot and 95th roads). The meetings will start at 7:00 PM.
- 2. All Tiger Cubs, Cubs, Scouts and Venture Scouts selling 10 tickets or more will receive a Scout Show patch.
- 3. Each unit is strongly requested to turn in ticket money with one check from your unit treasury. (Please make checks payable to Longs Peak Council.) All unsold tickets do not need to be returned. Scout Show patches will be given to the unit representative when the ticket money is turned in.
- 4. Turn in ticket money at the Scout Show office in the southwest corner of the Exhibit Hall on Friday, April 19th between 6:30 PM and 8:30 PM or on Saturday, April 20th between 9:00 AM and 12 noon. Units turning in money during this time will receive a 50% commission on all sold tickets.
- 5. Tickets will be collected at the entrance from those not in uniform. Scouts and leaders should be in uniform. Tickets purchased at the entrance will be \$1.00.
- 6. The top 2 selling Scouts will be awarded camping gear for their efforts!

CAMPING GUIDELINES

- 1. The picnic area directly south of the Exhibit Hall is available for tents. Camping reservations must be made through the Camping Chairperson and will be done on a first-come first-served basis.
- 2. Camping is for Cub Scouts, Boy Scouts, Varsity Scouts, Venture Scouts, Explorers, and their adult leaders only.
- 3. There must be at least one adult leader for every 5 scouts (minimum of 2 adults). Cub Scouts will need a legal guardian for each boy as per BSA policy.
- 4. Lights out will be at 10:00 PM Friday night. After that time anyone not camping will be required to leave the camping area and anyone who is camping will be required to stay within the camping area.
- 5. Open fires will not be allowed.
- 6. Cooking is discouraged. It is suggested that cold meals be brought for supper Friday night and breakfast Saturday.

OR

- 7. The Order of the Arrow will serve an inexpensive pancake breakfast on Saturday from 7:00 10:00 AM. See registration form enclosed in the packet.
- 8. Camps should be broken and the area cleaned by 7:30 AM Saturday.
- 9. Troops and Posts that abide by these guidelines will receive a special "Camping Participation" ribbon.
- 10. Units will be expected to use low impact camping techniques.
- 11. To aid in planning, units should turn in the completed Camp Site Request form by Thursday April 11, 2002.

AWARDS

Judges from outside the Arapahoe District will determine the winners of three categories. A unit may win only 1 trophy. The categories are:

"Scouting Spirit" award will be given to the unit receiving the highest number of points from the criteria listed on the evaluation sheets enclosed in the packet.

"Best of Show" trophies will be given to three Cub Packs, three Scout Troops and one Explorer Post receiving the highest number of points from criteria listed on the evaluation sheet enclosed in the packet.

"Pioneering Contest" will be given to three units receiving the highest number of points from the criteria listed on the evaluation sheet enclosed in the packet.

A UNIT MAY WIN ONLY ONE TROPHY FROM THE ABOVE CATEGORIES

OTHER AWARDS

"Scouter's Choice Award" selected by majority vote of ballots cast by adults and youth of all units. See ballots enclosed in the packet and note the deadline to turn in the ballots.

"Pinewood Derby" Tiger Cubs, Wolves, Bears and Webelos are eligible for trophies and ribbons in their racing divisions. Cubs and Webelos are eligible for the trophy awarded for Showmanship.

"Webelos Catapult" constants will compete for first, second and third place streamers for the catapult throw contest.

"Scout Show Participation" ribbons will be presented to those units that have a booth or activity and check in with the Scout Show office Saturday morning before opening ceremony.

"Camping Participation" ribbons will be presented to those units camping overnight and checking out at the Scout Show office Saturday morning.

"Five Star Award" to be presented to each unit meeting the criteria presented later in the packet.

"Ticket Sales Awards" will be presented to the top-selling Scouts in Arapahoe District.

"Dutch Oven Cookoff" special awards to be given to the top three chefs at the Scout Show.

EVALUATION SHEET FOR "SCOUTING SPIRIT" & "BEST OF SHOW"

(This is the criteria that the judges will be using to determine the "Scouting Spirit" and "Best of Show" winners.)

Pack	Troop	Crew	Post	
Total Score				
Unit booth	/ activity			
Area	s Judged	Maximum Points	Point	ts Awarded
activity. S	vement at Scouts had a r couts give the p y manage or coun	resentations, d		
_	sentation , skill, manner, ers about the sul	_	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 sentation in
	elopment e subject follow: theme and use or	s the scout sho		
Originality Creativity, decoration	ingenuity, uniqu	10 ueness, and int	elligence in k	 booth subject,
Booth Appea Quality and and unclutt	application of	10 the subject bei	ng presented.	Booth is clean
also works	at a Den or Patro with other Dens or r infighting.	_	-	
	pearance and leaders in c practice their (nd worn prope	cly. Evidence
	ooths be deducted if p therwise damage	=	ive nails or s	staples in the

EVALUATION SHEET FOR "PIONEERING" CONTEST

								-					
(This	is	the	criteria	that	the	judges	will	be	using	to	determine	the	"Pioneering'
conte	st 1	winne	ers.)										

TroopSubject
Troop Junior Leaders must develop plans that contain a drawing or sketch and a written description to explain the purpose and use of the project. Judges will request to see these plans.
Scouts must build the project at the Scout Show. Adult input is limited to 1) TRAINING, 2) ADVISORY COUNSELING, and 3) EVALUATION. This translates to NO ADULT HANDS-ON!
Only pioneering material may be used: poles and rope. Functional materials are allowed, if needed, for safety (pulleys, steel bars, etc.). Flags, posters, etc., are encouraged. The Troop may not start construction before 7:00 AM on Saturday, and must be finished no later than 10:45 AM. After the Scout Show opens, the display is to be manned by at least one Patrol until the Awards presentation at 3:30 PM.
Areas Judged Maximum Points Points Awarded
Written Plan 20 A written plan describing the project from the beginning to the end, complete with materials list and building instructions.
Scout Involvement 30 Evidence that ONLY Scouts prepared the Pioneering project. (No adults help other than teaching and evaluation advice. NO ADULT HANDS-ON.)
Pioneering Skills 20 Tight, secure and correct lashings used for the job intended. Project is safe. Finished project followed the plans. (Note: Five points will be subtracted if plans are unavailable for the judges to review.)
Originality 20 Creativity, ingenuity, uniqueness and intelligence in designing and planning the project. Its overall appeals to others.
Project Appearance 10 Project quality and application of pioneering skills. Project is clean and uncluttered.
Teamwork 20 Project is manned by at least one Patrol, working together and with other Patrols in the Troop. Junior Leaders exhibit leadership skills. Scouting Spirit is shown.
Scale Model Bonus 5
Total

FIVE STAR AWARD REQUIREMENTS

This is an award that every unit will have the opportunity to win. All it takes is fulfilling the following requirements:

- 1. An adult from your unit attends one of the Scout Show kick-off meetings (February 26, 27, or March 14).
- 2. Your unit participates in the Scout Show with a booth or activity.
- 3. Your unit sells at least 200 tickets per unit or 10 tickets per registered boy and money turned in by 12:00 PM April 20.
- 4. You accumulate at least 25 points through the following activities:
 - 5 points for each new scout recruited from April 1 through April 20
 - 5 points for each adult member on the Scout Show staff
 - 5 points for turning in slide show reservation by April 11
 - 5 points for turning in camping registration by April 11
 - 5 points for turning in booth or activity registration by April 11
 - 5 points for having entries in the Pinewood Derby
 - 5 points for having at least one registered adult having completed **youth protection training** within the past 3 years
- 5. The most important requirement of all is to have FUN!!

ARAPAHOE DISTRICT PINEWOOD DERBY

ENTRIES:

Cub Scouts:

Each pack is allowed to enter up to eight cars in the Arapahoe District Pinewood Derby as defined below:

Race winners

A maximum of five cars, three from Cub Scout racing divisions, one from Tiger Cub race division and one from an Open Class (non-Cub Scout) Division.

Show car entries

Two cars from Cub Scouts and one Open Class(non-Cub Scout).

All entries for the district competition should be collected and kept by the pack Pinewood Derby Chairperson after the pack race. The pack Chairperson or their designate is then responsible for checking the cars in at the district competition.

Boy Scout, Leader and Parent Open Class:

All Boy Scouts, Leaders, non-Scout siblings, and parents are eligible to enter a car in the Open Class division. There are no limits on the number of cars from a troop, but only one per person and they must choose whether or not they wish to enter in the race or the show car division. Show cars will not race. All construction rules are the same as for Cub Scouts with one exception: cars do not have to have been made after September 1, 1997. Entry forms are available at check-in.

GENERAL RULES:

- 1. The District Pinewood Derby is divided into three divisions. The Cub Scout division is open to all Cub Scouts registered with a pack when the pack races, including 5th graders. The Tiger Cub division is open to all registered Tiger Cubs, but will be a racing division only, no show cars. The Open Class division is for non-Cub Scouts including Boy Scouts, Adult Leaders and non-Scout siblings of Scouts. Cars must be built from an official Pinewood Derby Car Kit and comply with these rules. Each car must pass an inspection by the Official Inspection Committee before it may compete. The inspectors have the right to disqualify those cars, which do not meet requirements as defined here.
- 2. Use only Pinewood Derby Kit (#17006), authorized by the Boy Scouts of America and available through the Boulder Scout Service Center, McGuckin Hardware in Boulder, or official Boy Scout Distributors. Any other kit, such as those advertised in various magazines (including Boy's Life) or sold in hobby stores and even McGuckins (for example Pinecar), WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. If parts (such as wheels, axles precut wood blocks, etc.) are removed from such kits and installed in the

official kit, disqualification of said car will result. In general, use of unofficial parts for the purpose of increased performance and / or improvements of said cars is not allowed.

3. **DIMENSIONS**

WIDTH: Overall width shall not exceed 2 3/4

inches.

LENGTH: Overall length shall not exceed 7 inches HEIGHT: Overall height shall not exceed 4 inches CLEARANCE: Minimum recommended car clearance is 3/8

inches.

- 4. **WEIGHT:** Weight shall not exceed 5.000 ounces (141.75 grams). No loose materials of any kind are permitted in the car. The car may be hollowed out and built up to a maximum weight by the addition of a solid material, such as wood or metal provided it is securely built into the body. This rule will also be applied to Show cars that will not be raced.
- 5. **WHEEL BEARINGS:** Washers and / or bushings of any kind are prohibited.
- 6. SPRINGING: The car shall not ride on any type of springs.
- 7. **<u>DETAILS</u>**: Details such as steering wheel driver, decals, painting, interior detail are permissible as long as those details do not exceed the maximum length, width, height and weight specifications and are securely fastened to the car.
- 8. ATTACHMENTS: The car must be freewheeling with no starting device.
- 9. <u>WHEELS:</u> NO ROUNDING or BEVELING of the wheel is permitted. Milling and turning of the wheels is especially prohibited.
- 10. AXLE: Axle spacing is determined by the preset grooves in the block of wood provided in the kit. The axle spacing was changed in 1990. Both the new and old spacing is acceptable. Axles may be polished but cannot be plated or specially lubricated. Only dry graphite lubricant or Grand Prix Pinewood Derby Wheel and Axle Lubricant (part no. 17240) may be used as a lubricant.
- 11. All cars entered in the **2002** Arapahoe District Pinewood Derby Cub Scout and Tiger Cub divisions must have been built after **September 1**, **2001**. Cars are to have been built by the Scouts with limited parental / adult supervision and help. Scouts should do most of the work including painting. Open class cars are not subject to this rule.
- 12. **SHOW CARS:** Show cars must meet the same specifications as racecars or they may face disqualification. Only the cars from the Cub Scout division will be considered in judging. Judges will be an impartial group and all decisions are final. Open class show cars are for display only.
- 13. **OPEN CLASS:** There will be an open class to encourage parents to make their own car. Each pack may have one entry in the Open Class. The same rules apply to Scouts.

WEIGH IN RULES:

Each car is weighed during check-in and if the weight exceeds the limit, the person checking in the car will have to adjust the weight. Often cars were weighed on scales that were less accurate or weight has been added in glue stickers or even due to changes in humidity and absorption of the wood. The person checking in the cars should expect to have to adjust the weight of the car.

If your car has not been given a number by the end of the weigh in period it will be treated according to the rules under LATE ENTRIES.

LATE ENTRIES:

Late entries are allowed under the following conditions.

1. Medical/Emergency - Under the condition that a car or cars were not checked in due to a Medical / emergency of the party responsible for checking in a car. The car may be entered without penalty if it is weighed in before the start of the first heat.

2. Unexcused Reasons - Late entries that are weighed in after the weigh period is over but before the start of the first heat will be accepted under the condition that the car will be penalized. The penalty will depend upon the race format that is used for district races. The race format is dependent upon the track that is available for the district race.

RACE RULES:

The exact race format will be dependent upon the track that is available for the district race.

CAR REPAIR DURING THE RACE:

- 1. If the wheel or weight of a car falls off during the race, that run will be repeated if a responsible person for the car (parent, Scout, leader) makes repairs within 5 minutes. Note the car must be re-weighed following repairs and adding weight other than the piece that fell off is not allowed. Lubrication of the car is not allowed. These rules are designed to be fair, encourage good craftsmanship, and limit delays to the race.
- 2. If a car obviously hangs up on the track (quarter track length or more behind) due to a problem with the car such as a loose part, or interference, that run will be repeated as discussed in 1.
- 3. No lubrication of cars during the race is allowed. Cars should be lubricated prior to check-in.

RACE PROBLEMS:

- 1. If a car is interfered with during a run, for example being hit by something, another car, person or debris in the track, the run will be repeated with the cars in the same lanes.
- 2. If a timer error occurs, the run will be repeated.

COMMON PROBLEMS FOUND DURING CHECK-IN:

- 1. INCORRECT WEIGHT: Often cars were weighed on scales that were less accurate or weight has been added in glue stickers or even due to changes in humidity and absorption of the wood. The person checking in the cars should expect to have to adjust the weight of the car.
- 2. BEVELING OR SHAPING OF THE WHEELS: The wheels of some of the cars in past years have had excessive beveling or shaping. The wheels are inspected at check-in and can not be beveled, rounded, or specially shaped. The seam in the center of the wheel, if present, must be removed so the wheel is reasonably flat.
- 3. USE OF NON-OFFICIAL CAR KITS: Several cars had been built using **Pinecar** Kits. These are not allowed. They are easily identified as the wheels and axles are different from the official car kits.
- 4. INSUFFICIENT CLEARANCE: Several cars had the weights mounted on the bottom of the cars and these reduced the clearance to the track such that the weights or nails would drag on the guide rail of the track. These will have to be reworked to allow them to run in the race.
- 5. SIZE VIOLATIONS: Addition of weights or trim to the ends of the cars may cause some cars to exceed the maximum allowable length.
- 6. MODIFICATION OF CAR WHEELS: Addition of trim to the wheels of cars to be raced requires replacement or correction.
- 7. EXCESSIVE PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT: A common complaint is that some parents have done too much of the work on their Scout's cars. The Scouts are supposed to do the majority of the work themselves. It is not fair if an adult has done much of the work on a car, which is competing against cars build by Scouts. Parents should supervise and teach. Because of the risk of damaging the car, an adult can set the weight of the car and attach the wheels. Doing more is a disservice to the Scout. If an adult wants to do more they are encouraged to build a car of their own. This is an excellent way to encourage your Scout and show him by example how to build it. It is impossible for the Pinewood Derby Committee to judge who has done the work on the cars. We can only trust the honesty of the Scouts, parents and leaders.

RACE FORMAT:

Each Pack may enter a total of **5** cars in the race. 3 in the Cub Scout Division and 1 in the Tiger Cub Division and 1 in the Open Class Division. These cars may not be the same as the cars entered in the Show Car division. Your pack must determine the selection of the cars,

so please read how the race will be conducted as this may affect your Pack race.

During check in the cars are divided into heat divisions by the BOY'S RANK. Please be sure each car is clearly marked with a name and Pack number on the bottom. Open class will only race in the Open Class Division and will have its own set of prizes. Tiger Cubs will only race in the Tiger Cub Division, which will have its own set of prizes. In the Cub Scout Division each RANK GROUP has its own set of race heats to determine the top 3 cars of that group. These cars will be awarded prizes as First, Second & Third place in Rank. The top 2 cars in each rank group will then proceed to the Championship finals. These final six cars will then compete for the Grand Champion and Reserve Grand Champion of the District.

The exact race format will be dependent upon the track that is available for the district race.

The Open Class races are run Friday night from 7 - 8:30 PM and the Tiger Cub and Cub Scout Divisions will race only on Saturday.

ESTIMATED RACE TIMES ON SATURDAY:

```
7:00 AM - 8:20 AM Wolf preliminaries
8:30 AM - 9:50 AM Bear preliminaries
10:00 AM - 11:40 AM Webelos preliminaries
12:30 PM - 1:30 PM Tiger Cubs
1:45 PM - 2:30 PM Rank Race finals
2:40 PM - 3:00 PM Championship Race
```

All times are estimated. If a division ends early, the next division will start early. Please check race area for updated times during the day.

PINEWOOD DERBY AWARDS:

```
Tiger Cub Division:
   Third place Tiger (Ribbon)
   Champion Tiger & Reserve Champion Tiger (Trophies)

Cub Scout Division:
   First, Second, & Third Place Wolf (Ribbons)
   First, Second, & Third Place Bear (Ribbons)
   First, Second, & Third Place Webelos (Ribbons)
   Grand Champion & Reserve Grand Champion of the District (Trophies)
   Best of Show & Second Place Show Cars (Trophies)

Open Class Division:
```

First, Second & Third Place race awards (Trophies)

Reference: Cub Scout Grand Prix Pamphlet #33721 1997

CATAPULT RULES

The catapult competition is open to all Webelos dens. The objectives are to have fun, work on the Engineering Activity Badge, learn about teamwork, and have more fun. Pre-registration is not required.

- 1. A catapult is a mechanical arm, built by the competing Webelos den, which throws tennis balls. Webelos may not touch the balls while they are being thrown.
- 2. The catapults will be judged for safety before the competition. Catapults must not cause injuries. They will be inspected for pinches, cuts, eye dangers or any other dangers to Webelos or spectators.
- 3. The den will have one minute to move about fifteen feet from the staging area to the firing area and prepare the catapult for firing.
- 4. A catapult in its most extended position must be completely behind the firing line.
- 5. The target is a hula-hoop inclined 30 degrees from horizontal. The lowest end is one foot above the floor and 25 feet from the firing line
- 6. Missiles thrown will be marked tennis balls (3 per den). Only Webelos in the competing den may:
 - a. Place their catapult at the firing line
 - b. Touch their catapults and balls
 - c. Remove balls from target hoop
 - d. Chase balls, which miss the hoop
- 7. Webelos Den Leaders and parents may supervise the design and construction of the catapult. The Den Leaders or a parent may coach the den during the competition.
- 8. Throwing time will be two minutes. Balls being thrown by the catapult or on the way to the target at the stop command will count.
- 9. At least ten balls must be thrown. The final number balls landing in the target will be the den's score.
- 10. Ties will be resolved by competition with a reduced throwing time.
- 11. Order of competition:
 - a. Den and catapult in staging area
 - b. Safety inspection
 - c. Move to the firing line (one-minute)
 - d. Begin firing on command, retrieve balls, continue firing
 - e. Stop firing command (two minutes after start)
 - f. Score recorded
 - g. Move catapult from firing line

SCOUTER'S CHOICE YOUTH BALLOT

This ballot is provided to you so that all may take an active part in the awards selection.

There are 3 categories you will be voting on as a unit. They are as follows:

- 1. Best use of theme
- 2. Most educational or informative
- 3. Most popular or interactive

Please use the following guidelines when voting and get input from all the Scouts from your unit that are available.

- 1. Best use of theme
 - a. Best creative use of scout show theme
 - b. Is use of theme obvious?
- 2. Most educational or informative
 - a. Are ideas easy to understand?
 - b. Is information on the level of the Scouts?
 - c. Will information be retained?
 - d. Is information useful in daily or Scouting activities?
 - e. Is topic interesting?
- 3. Most popular or interactive

Please vote for one unit per category.

1.	Best	use of theme		Unit
2.	Most	educational or inf	ormative	Unit
3.	Most	popular or interac	tive	Unit
		U	nit Voting	3

PLEASE TURN IN BALLOT TO SCOUT SHOW OFFICE NO LATER THAN 1:30 PM SATURDAY

This page intentionally left blank.

SCOUTER'S CHOICE ADULT BALLOT

This ballot is provided to you so that all may take an active part in the awards selection.

There are 3 categories you will be voting on as a unit. They are as follows:

- 1. Best use of theme
- 2. Most educational or informative
- 3. Most popular or interactive

Please use the following guidelines when voting and get input from all the adults from your unit that are available.

- 1. Best use of theme
 - a. Best creative use of scout show theme
 - b. Is use of theme obvious?
- 2. Most educational or informative
 - a. Are ideas easy to understand?
 - b. Is information on the level of the Scouts?
 - c. Will information be retained?
 - d. Is information useful in daily or Scouting activities?
 - e. Is topic interesting?
- 3. Most popular or interactive

Please vote for one unit per category.

1.	Best	use of theme	Unit
2.	Most	educational or informative	Unit
3.	Most	popular or interactive	Unit
		Unit Votin	g

PLEASE TURN IN BALLOT TO SCOUT SHOW OFFICE NO LATER THAN 1:30 PM SATURDAY

This page intentionally left blank.

CAMPING REGISTRATION FORM

PACK_	T	ROOP/TEAM_		CF	REW_		POST_				
Pleas	se indicate	the type	and	number	of	sites	desired	by	your	unit.	
	Numb	er of ten	t cam	psites							
	Aver	age size (of yo	ur unit	. ' s	tents					
Unit	contact pe	rson for	this	activit	.y:						
Name_											
Home	phone			Work p	hor	ne					
Unit	leader										
Home	phone			Work p	hor	ne					

Bring or mail the completed entry form no later than **Thursday April 11**, **2002** (Deadline for 5 points toward Five Star Award) to one of the following:

- 1. April roundtable
- 2. Boulder Scout Office 5495 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 206 Boulder, CO 80303

This Page intentionally left blank.

BOOTH / ACTIVITY / PIONEERING REGISTRATION FORM

PACK_	TROOP_	TEAM	CREW	POS	;T				
	se indicate the ested by your un			_					
	Single boo	th (8'x8' - br	ing your own ta	able and cha	airs)				
	Double boo	th (8'x16' - bi	ring your own	table and ch	nairs)				
	Electrical	hook-up (bring	g your own exte	ension cords	;)				
	Outside booth Indicate size needed Booth / activity planned								
	Pioneering Approximat	e size of area	needed		_				
Unit	contact person	for this booth	/ activity / p	pioneering e	event:				
Name_									
Home	phone	Work	phone						
Unit	leader								
Home	phone	Work	phone						

Bring or mail the completed entry form no later than **Thursday April 11, 2002** (Deadline for 5 points toward Five Star Award) to one of the following:

- 1. April roundtable
- 2. Boulder Scout Office 5495 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 206 Boulder, CO 80303

This page intentional left blank.

2002 Arapahoe District Pinewood Derby Entry Form

All Entries must have this form to register their cars in the Pinewood Derby

Registration is from 6:00 - 8:30 PM Thursday, April 18th Late Registration is from 5:30 - 6:30 PM Friday, April 19th

Pack #	
Person(s) Responsible	for car check-in and pick up:
Name:	Phone #
Name:	Phone #
*Please make sure someone picks up your	pack's cars after the district races have been run.
Show Cars	
Cub's Name:	Rank: (Book Cub Scout is working in
Cub's Name:	Rank: (Book Cub Scout is working in
Open Class Name:	Age: (If Scout, Book Cub Scout is working i
* 2 Cub Scout cars and 1 Open class car, per	pack, may be entered, Open Class will not be judged.
Race	
Tiger's Name:	(0.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1
* One Tiger entry for Race Only	(Saturday April 20th, 12:30 - 1:30 PM)
Cub Scout Division:	
Cub's Name:	Rank:
Cub's Name.	(Book Scout is working in)
Cub's Name:	Rank:
ous s riams.	(Book Scout is working in)
Cub's Name:	Rank:
	(Book Scout is working in)
* 3 Entries for Race from 1st, 2nd, &	3rd in your Pack / Finals Saturday April 20th
(Wolf Preliminaries 7:00 - 8:20 AM - Bear Prelin	n's 8:30 - 9:50 am – Webelos Prelim's 10:00 - 11:40 am
Tiger Cubs 12:30 - 1:30 pm - Rank Race Finals	1:45 - 2:30 pm – Championship Races 2:40 - 3:00 pm)
Open Class Division:	
Name:	Age:
* 1 Open class race entry, Race	es on Friday April 19th 7:00 - 8:30- PM
PLEASE BE SURE THAT EACH	CAR IS CLEARLY MARKED ON THE
BOTTOM WITH THE NAME AN	ND PACK NUMBER OF THE OWNER!

Please make sure you know the direction the car will run (which end is front and which is back)

This page intentionally left blank.

WEBELOS Recognition Form

Please fill out this form for the scouts that have earned the Arrow of Light rank after April of 2001 or 2002 that would like to be recognized at the campfire Friday night. Please print the names of these scouts to be recognized and the Pack number where the Arrow of Light rank was earned.

	First Name	Last Name	Pack #
1.		 	
2.		 	
14.		 	
15.		 	
16.		 	

Bring or mail the completed recognition form no later than **Thursday April 11, 2002** to one of the following:

- 1. April roundtable
- 2. Boulder Scout Office 5495 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 206 Boulder, CO 80303

This page intentionally left blank.

SLIDE SHOW RESERVATION FORM

Unit	
Contact person	
Home number	Work number
Approximate length of slide show	√:
You will be contacted the week of your slide presentation.	of April 15, 2002 with the time slot for
Bring or mail the completed rese	ervation form no later than Thursday

April 11, 2002 (Deadline for 5 points toward Five Star Award) to one of

1. April roundtable

the following:

2. Boulder Scout Office 5495 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 206 Boulder, CO 80303